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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFFIRE

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Principal activities

The principal activities of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results
The Group's loss for the year and the Group's financial position at 31 March
2024 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 108 to 180.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

CHAN Sai-ming (FRZHER)

CHAO Yu-hang Christopher (X3%18)

CHEUNG Wing-han (3K StiR)

LAU Kwok-fan (XI[E )

LEUNG Kin-man (REX)

MA Erica Yun (3ER)

MAK Tak-wai (Ef&f#)

NG Chi-keung (fEE58)

SIN Chiu-shun Charleston (i)

TSOI Tsz-shan (321EHH)

YEUNG Chuen-sing ($7£5%)

PANG Yat-bond Derrick (&—#5)

KONG Jianping (FL&IF)

CHAN Hiu-fung Nicholas (F&B%I£) (appointed on 1 April 2024)
TSANG On-yip (B %) (appointed on 1 April 2024)
WONG Kin-hang (22 #18) (appointed on 1 April 2024)
CHAN Ka-yin Karen (P53 %%) (resigned on 31 March 2024)
SIN Hendrick (J57X38) (resigned on 31 March 2024)

Cheryl CHOW Ho-kiu (B ®IFF) (alternate Director to MAK Tak-wai,
appointed on 15 May 2023)

Charmaine Amy WONG Hoi-wan (2&7889) (alternate Director to MAK Tak-wai,
resigned on 15 May 2023)
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Directors (continued)

There being no provision in the Company's Articles of Association in connection
with the retirement of Directors by rotation, all existing Directors continue in
office for the following year.

The persons who were Directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the
year and up to the date of this report (unless otherwise stated) were:

LAU Yip-man (X)JlE2) (appointed on 10 October 2023)
CHENG Chung-ngam (¥B#2:5) (appointed on 3 April 2024)
LEE Kok-ming (Z=[E$4) (resigned on 23 July 2023)

YAN King-shun (f£515) (resigned on 31 March 2024)

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Company’s Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Company to which the Company or any of the Company’s holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Management contracts

Save for the management agreement of Le Méridien Hong Kong, Cyberport, the
facilities management agreement and the system operation contract, no other
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries were
entered into or existed during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFFIRE

Permitted indemnity provision

During the year and up to the date of this report, the permitted indemnity
provision as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
for the benefit of the Directors of the Company was in force. The Company has
arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ liabilities in respect
of any legal actions against its Directors arising out of corporate activities.

Events after the reporting period
Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting period are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A
resolution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHAN Sai-ming
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 September 2024

104 Cyberport 2023/24 Annual Report

REFRIIRR R

FARBEARESBHAL, RETFHRREX EXA
BE(RBFO) F4695) FEREIRBDESNERLT
B XABEMEEZHALE AR ERD M HEZ L
BERIFATHRE SN EE R ERM.

REHEED
FEANREHEERSTNZFBERTEEMSHE
B £33,

%5
LXRIIMESHABREATERERBENREE. &
KEBLRKRITMBESBEARBZBINBIRINE
BFNERABFEAZ LR=Z,

REREER
FR4HER
ZE

&8
2024598 25H

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report

To the members of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
EARNEABEERRAR

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 108 to 180, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2024, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “"Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the report of the
Directors, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
JRITAZER DR &

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial

statements (continued)

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
25 September 2024

JRAZIZELMHR S
BERRE I GAMSRRAKENRE (9)

* NEEXRABSRLESITEMPIBIEERS
1, HIREFRBNEITEIE, BERTHFES
EMHEREXNERTHEL, NMITRESE
W REFANFEEEEFEERER. HR(]
IABFEERTHEN, WEBHEEZHNRS
FRBEAELIRGEVSREFOERIKRE.
HEXKEFRE, WRMNNALRFLRER
Mo BMMELRETZEIMKRS B HLEPTER
SHEITREIE. A, AREDXBERATES
B REHTEREEE,

* EGEMSRENBEIIRG N, EHNRE
(BERE), UNGEMSHRERES AT RMRE
I LZYSE BB

B REARSRERULSENOYSHERIRE
FEEREHMEITEIE, URSEEeUSRRER
Bl RINAATIES. BERRITERARITT
B RMNFTNRNMNEITRAAIBLEHRE,

BMNESEZ=/T (AT EE) wEiteit TR M E,
UNEBAREIT R NHTEE, BREERINETHITT
AR N EIENERERT R Z L.

Rk &IHIMESFR
WA =TT

=58
2024898 25H

WD 2023/24 IR 107



AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KETEZEEMSRE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

ZaEim

Year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831 HIEFE

REVENUE

Other net income

EXPENSES BEFORE PUBLIC MISSION ACTIVITIES

EXPENSES AND DEPRECIATION
Building management expenses
Staff costs
Government rent and rates
Other operating expenses

Finance costs

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE PUBLIC MISSION
ACTIVITIES EXPENSES AND DEPRECIATION

Public mission activities expenses, net

OPERATING LOSS BEFORE DEPRECIATION

Depreciation

LOSS BEFORE TAX

Income tax

LOSS FOR THE YEAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2024

HK$

BT
538,027,221 412,042,881
70,403,437 78,479,710
608,430,658 490,522,591
(190,827,781)  (183,727,919)
(117,494,220)  (101,608,732)
(17,282,163) (15,204,906)
(120,251,276) (87,291,175)
(142,257) (47,963)

(445,997,697) (387,880,695)

162,432,961 102,641,896
(174,797,680) (186,655,669)
(12,364,719) (84,013,773)

(178,309,083) (162,538,732)

(190,673,802) (246,552,505)

(190,673,802) (246,552,505)

e,

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Other comprehensive loss that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

- Changes in fair value of equity investments
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR,
NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Q'i"A
=N A

EEl@m*

Year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024FE 3831 HIEFE

2024
HK$
BT

FERTH

(190,673,802)

@

\

(246,552,505)

HftemSH

FhEEMErSENNLERmEZ
HtteESH
—EBERAANETANEMEENEZ
RAKEZ AANEEDD
(52,952,199)

(139,838,708)

FREMSESHR (GOFHE)
(52,952,199)

(139,838,708)

FRLETHEH (243,626,001)

(386,391,213)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ZalSINRER ZalSIRNRER

As at 31 March 2024 F202443831H As at 31 March 2024 F2024E3H31H

2024 2024

HK$ HK$

BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENAE = NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEFREh G 5
Property, plant and equipment k. MBS RIS 14 5,250,272,836  3,225,323,252 Interest-bearing borrowing TEEE 23 1,263,000,000 -
Right-of-use assets ERANE 15(a) 8,696,953 1,190,514 Development maintenance fund KEHEES 24 370,232,570 371,802,919
Deferred rental receivables N UNFE & 4,243,654 6,525,764 Other payables E MR FRIN 21 9,031,857 -
Cyberport Macro Fund investments HIGER O B EIRT 16 78,188,704 125,852,290 Lease liabilities FAF AR 15(b) 5,958,950 -
Prepayments and deposits TR 2 & 19 2,758,292 2,432,671

Total non-current liabilities Rz R BT 1,648,223,377 371,802,919
Total non-current assets ERBEERT 5,344,160,439  3,361,324,491
Net assets AFEgE 4,116,061,482 3,344,117,134

CURRENT ASSETS mENFE =
Inventories =5 466,319 376,004 EQUITY Wik
Trade receivables F_“ZL&N\K%‘X 18 44,636,496 27,999,345 Share capital FEZ!K 25 1u998|000|002 984,000,002
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FUTFRIN . ¥k N EL A R USRI 19 29,957,635 31,192,691 Reserves e 2,118,061,480  2.360,117,132
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries Nz Y2 [E) £ B /B A BI I 29(b) 991,869 201,442
| t tsi iti PR 17 581,518,836 653,239,404
nvestments in securities IESFE R Total equity BT 4,116,061,482  3,344,117,134
Cash and cash equivalents MeEMNEEENE 20 1,233,480,151 326,394,805
Total current assets Eh R 1,891,051,306  1,039,403,691
CURRENT LIABILITIES i Enfa f
Trade payables RS TR 321,409,611 72,459,276 CHAN Sai-ming CHEUNG Wing-han
Other payables and accruals ELA R A FRI R 7 11 2% A 21 778,562,627 252,792,148 BR4HER BRI
Rental and other deposits HeEMHEHMEE 22 113,688,803 103,973,471 Director Director
Amount due to the immediate holding company N AT B TR AT TN 29(b) 254,303,568 254,303,568 E0 EE
Lease liabilities AERR 15(b) 2,962,277 1,279,666
Total current liabilities mEn S R R 1,470,926,886 684,808,129
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEFERE 420,124,420 354,595,562
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES AP BRI 5 5 5,764,284,859  3,715,920,053
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GZEN@m TR ZEN@m TR
Year ended 31 March 2024 £ £ 2024FE3831 HIEFE

Year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024FE3831 HIEFE
- N\

N

At 1 April 2022 F2022%4818 538,000,002  5,386,040,004 127.990,407  (2,774,925,554)  3,277,104,859 Issue of shares RiTRR 25 1,014,000,000 - - - 1,014,000,000
Transfer from development HEABLEBEESRKE
int fund t ital = 24 - 1,570,349 - - 1,570,349
Loss for the year ERSR - - o (246552505)  (246552,505) maintenance fund to capital reserve - R
Other comprehensive loss for FREMEESH
the year: At 31 March 2024 F20245%3831H 1,998,000,002  5,395,013,841* (55,747,051)* (3,221,205,310)*  4,116,061,482
- Changes in fair value of equity —EBERRANEITA
investments designated HihemBE 2 RA @ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$2,118,061,480 (2023: HK$2,360,117,132) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
at fair value through other BRZARNMEDE * ZEEEKESESEM SRR ZLE(EE2.118,061,48087T (20234 : 2,360,117,132/87T) o
comprehensive income, net of tax (I0BHII) - - (139,838,708) - (139,838708)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ FRNLETIREHM - - (139,838,708)  (246,552,505)  (386,391,213)
Subtotal Nt 538,000,002  5,386,040,004 (11,848,301)  (3,021,478,059)  2,890,713,646
Issue of shares RiTHAR 25 446,000,000 - - - 446,000,000
Transfer of fair value reserve upon BASMEERRIREM
the deregistration of an equity SENEZ THRER
investment at fair value through BRZARNET D
other comprehensive income - - 9,053,449 (9,053,449) -
Transfer from development REBAEBESRIEE
maintenance fund to capital reserve  AZfE& 24 - 7,403,488 - - 7,403,488
At 31 March 2023 and at 1 April 2023 F2023%3831BR
20234818 984,000,002  5,393,443,492* (2,794,852)* (3,030,531,508)*  3,344,117,134
Loss for the year FRTH - - - (190,673,802) (190,673,802)
Other comprehensive loss for FREMEESHR
the year:
- Changes in fair value of equity —BERRANEITA
investments designated Hite Al a2z BAx
at fair value through other BRZ ARNETH
comprehensive income, net of tax (I0pHII) - - (52,952,199) - (52,952,199)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ FRNLETIREH - - (52,952,199)  (190,673,802)  (243,626,001)
Subtotal INT 984,000,002  5,393,443,492 (55,747,051)  (3,221,205,310)  3,100,491,133
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SZEIERER

Year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831 HIEFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Realisation of government grants

Interest income from financial assets at
amortised cost, net of amortisation of premium

Interest income from investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Fair value losses on debt investments at fair value
through profit or loss, net

Net realised/unrealised (gain)/losses on
investments at fair value through profit or loss

Interest income on bank deposits
Impairment of trade receivables
Impairment of other receivables

Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment, net

Finance costs

Revaluation gains on investments

Decrease in deferred rental receivables
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade receivables

Decrease in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries

Increase in trade payables
Increase in other payables and accruals

Increase in rental and other deposits

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Interest on lease liabilities

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
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2024
HK$

(190,673,802)

175,949,998
2,359,085
(40,320,531)

(17,575,484)

2,683,632

(9,522,651)

(40,010,442)
4,752,226
6,163,267

344,999
142,257
(482,616)

(246,552,505)

160,371,162
2,167,570
(83,160,826)

(316,887)

(15,680,489)

3,589,500

8,041,445
(6,930,337)
2,000,117

27,037
47,963
(844,686)

(106,190,062)

(177,240,936)

2,282,110 3,928,144
(90,315) (204,516)
(21,389,377) (11,255,818)
3,192,544 21,935,167
(790,427) 1,737,467
248,950,335 26,927,302
37,002,313 28,528,527
9,715,332 9,686,177
172,682,453 (95,958,486)
(142,257) (47,963)
172,540,196 (96,006,449)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property, plant and equipment
Increase in Cyberport Macro Fund investments

Increase in investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Proceeds from sale and redemption of held for
maturity investments

Proceeds from sale and redemption of investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from sale and redemption of investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income

Interest income received from:
- Financial assets at amortised cost
- Investments at fair value through profit or loss
- Bank deposits

Increase in time deposits with original maturity of
more than three months

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Government grants received

Principal portion of lease payments
Proceeds from issue of shares

New other loans

Interest on other borrowing

Net cash flows from financing activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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Year ended 31 March 2024 & E2024FE3831 HIEFE
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2024
HK$

(2,171,269,958)
(7,972,245)

(288,122,544)

369,848,379

17,647,963
31,491,587

(185,308,525)

(442,775,055)
(12,227,990)

(252,247,504)

49,384,925

234,507,136

14,531,824

316,887
15,273,105
6,056,002

(43,346,604)

(2,233,685,343)

(430,527,274)

27(b) 524,859,054 71,501,310
27(b) (2,223,963) (2,254,797)
1,014,000,000 446,000,000
1,263,000,000 -
(16,713,123) -
2,782,921,968 515,246,513
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DATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 March 2024 8;ZE2024F3831 HILEE

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity
of more than three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows
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Notes HK$ HK$
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721,776,821 (11,287,210)
258,115,337 269,402,547
979,892,158 258,115,337
20 1,233,480,151 326,394,805

20 (253,587,993)

(68,279,468)

979,892,158

258,115,337

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office
of the Company is located at Level 6, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road,
Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is to support and promote the
innovation and technology development in Hong Kong through the creation
of a comprehensive ecosystem of digital technology companies.

With a vision to build Cyberport as a main force in developing the
digital technology industry as a key economic driver of Hong Kong (the
“Vision"), the public mission of the Company is anchored in three strategic
directions:

Talent Cultivation and Development;

= Industry Development; and

= Integration of New and Traditional economies.

In the Group's relentless pursuit of excellence, the Group takes a
pragmatic and comprehensive approach in realising its Vision. To ensure
the line-up of services is dynamic and flexible in meeting the needs of
budding technology entrepreneurs, investor community and industry
talents, the Company actively builds strong partnerships with leaders from
technology industry, academia, research institutes and professional bodies.

To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable start-
ups, the Company has launched the Cyberport Macro Fund (the "CMF")
for Hong Kong-based digital entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size of
HK$200 million, the CMF aims to provide Cyberport's start-ups with early
financing and promote the development of venture capital ecosystem in
Hong Kong. In April 2021, Cyberport had committed to inject an additional
amount of HK$200 million into the CMF and extend the scope to cover
Series B and later-stage investments. Further details of the investments
made up to the end of the reporting period are included in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has established various teams (“Public Mission Teams") to
achieve the above public mission. The expenses incurred by Public Mission
Teams that contribute to the successful running of the public mission
activities are disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Kong Cyberport
Development Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and is wholly owned by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region ("HKSAR") via The Financial Secretary Incorporated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SelSIRETMFE
31 March 2024 202443831 H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 1. 2FEFEH (&)
Information about subsidiaries BXEATNZER
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: RABZHEABFEWMT :

Percentage of equity

Place of Issued ordinary attributable to Principal
incorporation share capital the Company activities
AMRIIME  BR{ITEERA AT SEB 7L FEISE
Direct Indirect
=k EIE:=3

Cyberport Macro Fund Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 = Investment holding
Y 17878 BRI

CMF One Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
R 1873 BRITR

CMF Two Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
S 17873 BRER

CMF Three Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
R 1873 BRITR

CMF Four Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
B5E 1870 SRR

CMF Five Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
R 1873 BRI

CMF Six Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
o 1870 BRITR

CMF Seven Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
) 1787% BRI

CMF Eight Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
N 1870 BRITR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, debt investments at fair value through profit or loss and equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income which
have been measured at fair value. These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2024. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results
in control. When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Group, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2024 202493831 H
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related

assets [including goodwill), liabilities, any non-controlling interest

and exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair value of any

investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or

loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in other

comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,

as

appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had

directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for

120

the current year's consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1 and

Insurance Contracts

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are applicable to

the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’'s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to
accounting policy disclosures. The Group has disclosed the material
accounting policy information in note 2 to the financial statements.
The amendments did not have any impact on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the Group's financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. Since the Group's approach and policy
align with the amendments, the amendments had no impact on the
Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow the scope of the
initial recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset
(provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences arising from these transactions.
The amendments did not have any material impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary exception from
the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules published by the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development. The
amendments also introduce disclosure requirements for the affected
entities to help users of the financial statements better understand
the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income taxes, including the
disclosure of current tax related to Pillar Two income taxes separately
in the periods when Pillar Two legislation is effective and the
disclosure of known or reasonably estimable information of their
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which the legislation
is enacted or substantively enacted but not yet in effect. The Group
has applied the amendments retrospectively. Since the Group did not
fall within the scope of the Pillar Two model rules, the amendments
did not have any impact to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SelSIRETMFE

31 March 2024 202443831 H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied any new and revised HKFRSs, that have been
issued but are not yet effective for the accounting year ended 31 March
2024, in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, the Group
considers that these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Group's results of operations and financial
position.

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

122

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, debt investments at fair value through profit or loss, and equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets
and deferred tax assets), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to
an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person's family and
that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of
a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

provides key management personnel services to the Group or to
the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Buildings Over the period of the lease

Building services and support facilities 10%

Information technology facilities 20%

Centres equipment 20% - 33'/.%
Leasehold improvements 10%
Furniture and equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all
leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its
short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption for
leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’'s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income ("ocl1"), it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held
within the aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a
recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or (0ss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on the equity investments
are also recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset
host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host together with
the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its entirety as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.
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Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates, if and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information. The Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the
Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component and
lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade
and other payables, and borrowings]

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-bearing
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs of disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise
cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly liquid deposits with a
maturity of generally within three months that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
and held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term
deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of each reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of each reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Hotel and management services

Revenue from the provision of hotel and management services is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group.

Revenue from food and beverages

Revenue from the sale of food and beverages is recognised at the point in
time when the control of the assets is transferred to the buyer, generally
upon consumption of the food and beverage items by the customer.

Other facilities services

Revenue from promotion, additional air-conditioning and chilled water
charge, license fee and other facilities charge is recognised over time
as services are rendered if the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from event and venue fee, vetting and coordination fee, tenant
bus ticket and other premise fee is recognised at the point in time when
the customer has obtained control of the service, generally when the
services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Revenue from the car park fee is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Other incidental income and services income are recognised when the
income is entitled and services are rendered.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers
the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Foreign currency transactions

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of each reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainties

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group performs reviews for impairment of non-financial assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets may not be recoverable.

The Group reviews certain indicators of potential impairment of these
assets such as reported sales and purchase prices, market demand
and general market conditions. The Group considers “Buildings held for
rental”, “Hotel building” and “Building services and support facilities” as
a portfolio of assets and identifies the cash-generating unit to which the
portfolio of assets belongs by referring to the valuation performed by
independent professional valuers, after taking into consideration the net
income allowing for reversionary potential. The assumptions adopted in
the property valuation are based on the market conditions existing at the
end of the reporting period, with reference to current market sales prices
and the appropriate capitalisation rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainties (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Based on the Group's best estimates, provision for impairment loss on the
non-financial assets is not necessary.

Investments in securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 on initial classification of
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as financial assets at amortised cost if the Group has the
intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity; or at fair value
through profit or loss if the investments are managed by external fund
managers and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and
information about the investments is provided internally on that basis to
the Group's key management.

For financial assets at amortised cost, the Group evaluates its intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to
keep these investments to maturity other than for specific circumstances
for example, selling financial assets with an insignificant amount close
to maturity, it will be required to reclassify the entire class as debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
investments would, therefore, be measured at fair value not at amortised
cost.

For investments designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
Group engages external fund managers to manage the investment
portfolio which is evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis.
Accordingly, these investments are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss and are stated at fair value with subsequent changes in fair
value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit
and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the financial services, media and retail sectors, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer'’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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31 March 2024 202443831 H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued) BA=itit REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 4. WINSE MU ST
Estimation uncertainties (continued) HirFrHERZE (&) An analysis of revenue is as follows: WANZ DT :

Fair value of Cyberport Macro Fund investments

The unlisted equity investments and unlisted debt investments have
been valued based on the recent market transaction prices, market-
based valuation techniques and expected cash flows discounted at current
rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk characteristics. The
valuations require the Group to make estimates about expected future
cash flows, credit risk, volatility and discount rates, and to determine the

BB RN ESRAEZ ARNE

FLETRARANIF EHHRSRARELATG
RN U A EEGERLRRERTAE
ISR KB IFAEBY T B 2 IAT F R R 2 FHR
NEREBHTEE. AEFTEAEEAXNTHRRFK
RNERE. BN, SRR RHAITET
HEFEFLRH AR AR REBNEEHEEL

2024
HK$

comparable public companies (peers) and select the price multiple or EEEHR, AMEETHAEM. F2024F3831 Revenue from contracts with customers EFELIMN
enterprise value multiple. Hence, they are subject to uncertainty. The fair B, FLETRABRAEANFLTHRSEREAZAAMN Income from hotel operation FEEWN 115,427,203 42,538,055
values of the unlisted equity investments and unlisted debt investments B85 517978,188,704 77T (20234 : 119,976,069 7% . )
) o NN Building management income L/NA=3=A PN

at 31 March 2024 were HK$78,188,704 (2023: HK$119,976,069) and HK$Nil 7o) MEATT (20234 : 5,876,22187T), H—F
(2023: HK$5,876,221), respectively. Further details are included in notes 16 EERTSAMSRENE 16K, - Management fee income — BEEHEA 91,993,997 93,953.219
and 31 to the consolidated financial statements. - Other facilities income — HMA&HEURN 42,984,190 33,707,828
Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment k. MBRIGETE 2 A ERAERRERNE
In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property, FEEY. MBEGEME 2 Al RAFER LR CEl IR 170.199.102
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such RNER, AEFANEERSTRAE, SIEMEMHR
_as technical 9r comme_r(_:ial obsol_escence arising from change or HE%QE}JE@E&;‘&E}Z?}FH&%E@H;'.ZFE%%XQ%E}J Revenue from other sources R N
improvements in the provision of services, or from a change in the market ERAFEAIR . FF= AR, TR KRR
demand for the service output of the asset, the expected usage of the . BFEEPRFUNEBFERZ AR EMB Rental income RSN
asset, the expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance il BRI EAFRZ T HREAEAMRAR Variable lease payments that do not depend HABURATRIs g R R
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The BUZRMUEFZEREREH. Wk, V28R on an index or a rate BETENE 3,440,212 3,286,963
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of the BB Z S ERERE  RFERNEBDT Other lease payments, including fixed payments HAEMR, SFEEENR 269,695,308 225,120,185
Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way. An adjustment of FeRifEIt, MEHITIEIARE., FEIREHRR, &
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/or residual values SARIBBRE )N ol 52 B FH M FI RN E#HT
of items of property, plant and equipment are different from previous i, 273,135,520 228,407,148
estimation. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of Car park fee income SHEERIR 14,486,311 13,436,631
each reporting period based on changes in circumstances.
Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate TR — i@ A= 287,621,831 241,843,779
The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease, REFATERZECHEAMBREHFAE, Eit
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure FERAREERIXR ("BEERFX") ITERE

538,027,221 412,042,881

lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as the Group that does not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the Group's
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates (such as the Company's stand-alone credit

rating). W)
Type of services BRS52E8Y
13 JE R IR N e
Defenred tax assets RN y . Income from hotel operation BIEETBWAN
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent ERIERINES - F AT B R A A AT A TR S . .
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the R B R FARKDARMSR T UL, &8 - Room income —EREBA 63,111,481 11,360098
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to B R AR 2K S N IR 5% i A BT BE H 21 22 B 8] Ke Ak - Food and beverage income — RN 52,315,722 31,177,957
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based EERRB SN ERIEL B ARFIMT, UEER Building management income L/NE=3L:1T PN
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with TN BIERR IR S o - Management fee income I ON 91,993,997 93,953,219
future tax planning strategies. L .
- Other facilities income — HAMI&HEUN 42,984,190 33,707,828
Total revenue from contracts with customers B e B NSl 250,405,390 170,199,102
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4. REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME (continued)

4. WANSHMBUYINES (&) 4. REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME (continued)

(a) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from (a) BERFEHWMANZZTENER (4) (b) Performance obligations (continued) (b) BAZE (40)
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contracts with customers (continued)

2024
HK$

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining

performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) which
amounted to HK$3,576,470 as at 31 March 2024 (2023: HK$2,040,980)
are expected to be recognised within one year.

F2024F38318H, nEEMRBARME
(RRBTHBARREIT) ZRZNIER
3,576,470 7T (20234F : 2,040,980 7T) ,
HRF—FRHiAo .

BT
2024
HK$
Geographical markets b N i h ) -
7T
Hong Kong &8 250,405,390 170,199,102
Other net income HtUg N &8
Timing of revenue recognition UT NFfIABTE . NP .
9 9 Interest income from financial assets at PR AYIK 2 2R A 2 F BN,
_ R _m : . » —
Services transferred at a point in time FE—IHEREZZRS 85,449,936 53,905,268 amortised cost, net of amortisation of B AR T BT
Services transferred over time BT (B 5% % 2 AR SS 164,955,454 116,293,834 premium of HK$Nil (2023: HK$91,952) (20234 : 91,9527 7T) - 316,887
Interest income from investments at fair value RQAANEIT AR ZREFBUIN
Total revenue from contracts with customers B &L SE0 250,405,390 170,199,102 through profit or loss 17,575,484 15680489
Interest income on bank deposits RITERF BN 40,010,442 6,930,337
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the TRET|FAIRS BT IR S S Services income from fellow subsidiaries (Note) FRKIEABZARSWN (HE) 4,201,654 4,201,654
current reporting period that were included in the contract liabilities W ER T MNSET Net realised/unrealised gain/(losses) on BAAMETNRBZRAETH
at the beginning of the reporting period: investments at fair value through RTHWE (SH) 25
_ profit or loss 9,522,651 (8,041,445)
2024 — Foreign exchange differences, net SNCEEN AN (2,755,362) (3,680,335)
HKS Government subsidies on rental waiver e E 2 BUNRBNEMN - 61,713,927
_ Others Hith 1,848,568 1,358,196
T
. \ 70,403,437 78,479,710
Revenue recognised that was included in AT NIRE RSN R ERZ W ¢
contract liabilities at the beginning of the .
B : Note: B -
reporting period:
Income from hotel operation BIEEIZWAN 2,040,980 1,106,162 On 24 May 2000, a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam (the T200065824H, EBYBBELRERE AR ("HiE

(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations is summarised
below:

Income from hotel operation
The performance obligation is satisfied over time when services are
rendered.

Revenue from food and beverages
The performance obligation is satisfied when the customer obtains
control of the promised goods, being at the point when the customer
consumes the food and beverages at the restaurants. Payment of
the transaction is due immediately at the point when the customer
consumes the food and beverages.

Management fee income
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered.

Other facilities income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time or at the point in
time as services are rendered.

Cyberport 2023/24 Annual Report
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7o

H AR
BAREBENBEBZRTRHERSHE
?ﬁo

“Residential Portion") was assigned to Hong Kong Cyberport (Ancillary Development) Limited
("HKCADL"), a fellow subsidiary, by Hong Kong Cyberport Development Holdings Limited
(the “immediate holding company”). Pursuant to the services agreement dated 25 October
2003 entered into between the Company and HKCADL, fixed monthly services income of
HK$125,600 was received from HKCADL commencing from November 2003 for the provision
of services by the Company to facilitate the operation of the Residential Portion. The fee was
revised to HK$200,000 commencing from April 2006 and to HK$261,000 commencing from
May 2008. The total amount received during the year was HK$3,132,000 (2023: HK$3,132,000).

Pursuant to the services agreement dated 12 March 2005 entered into between the Company
and Skillful Limited, a fellow subsidiary, monthly services income was received for the
provision of information technology and telecommunications services to the Residential
Portion. The total amount received during the year was HK$1,069,654 (2023: HK$1,069,654).

BAT") BRERKEADEBHEE (HERE) ERAF
(“HKCADL") #t HSE R MM LB A M EE8969 S HA—FH
# ("EEH;H") . RI\BALQESHKCADLFTITIZ B H#A42003
F10825AZ RSN, FRAREELD ZETRMHAER
%5, B2003411 8 FT44%S 5 FHKCADLULER 125,600 T 2 B
EMRS YN, E20064 48 R%200845 812, LU ESHFI
&3R4 5 200,00058 7T 5% 261,000 7T. AEEBKSTH
3,132,000 7T (20234F : 3,132,000587T) o

RIBEATSERHE AT SKillful LimitedFIiTII HERN
200538 128 ZREMIN, RABRETHHIRMZEA
MERBRARSMEA KBRS BN AEEEBRETN
1,069,654 7T (20234 : 1,069,654 7T) o
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ZESIREME
31 March 2024 202443831 H
5. STAFF COSTS

An analysis of staff costs is as follows:

Salaries and allowances
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Staff benefits and other staff costs

Analysed into:
Hotel

Corporate office

Public Mission Teams (note 11)

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Rental income less outgoings of HK$16,525,762
(2023: HK$14,460,506)

Cost of inventories
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Lease payments not included in
the measurement of lease liabilities

Fair value losses on debt investments at fair
value through profit or loss, net

Auditor’s remuneration
Impairment of trade receivables
Impairment of other receivables

Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment, net

Finance costs:

Interest on lease liabilities
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DA
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NREEA (1)

FABUWNIOBRTTS216,525,7628 7T
(20234 : 14,460,506787T)

FHERE

Wk, MEskig&irIa
ERNEHTIR

R NEERGIHERNARNR

BAMET NRHZ 5 RA
NANES TR AFI

1ZERIMEN =

RZU R 2 BB

B YR 2 R E

HEYIL. FBRIEMEZ
SHUSER

Ws52RA
HERAGRZHE

RIME
RTHAZ DT
2024
HK$
AT
161,719,506 144,199,228
6,479,067 5,902,130
1,692,142 470,040
169,890,715 150,571,398
62,385,318 50,774,781
55,108,902 50,833,951
117,494,220 101,608,732
52,396,495 48,962,666
169,890,715 150,571,398

PRBLAIS

FERAZBRRESRENR Gt A) TFIMmE :

15(a)

15(c)

18
19

2024
HK$
#TT

(256,609,757)

20,505,702
175,949,998
2,359,085

490,940

2,683,632

458,100
4,752,226
6,163,267

344,999

142,257

N\

(213,946,642)
15,339,074
160,371,162
2,167,570

580,298

3,589,500
442,000
2,000,117

27,037

47,963

o
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7. FINANCE COSTS

2024
HK$
BT

HtpfE5F 8
B BELFE

Interest on other borrowings

Less: Interest capitalised

Interest on lease liabilities AERAGRZFE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The emoluments of the Directors of the Group disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation are as follows:

Directors' fees B5EEE

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e, RWREYET
Discretionary bonuses [ pean

Retirement scheme contributions BRI R

SESIREME
31 March 2024 202443831 H
1532 B

29,974,623 -
(29,974,623) -

142,257 47,963

142,257 47,963

S5

RIEE B (ATEG) F383(NNER (AR (KEE
EHMTERD) M) 28R B A ERAEEHE
WE:
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A S IRENE RE M S5 AR IE
31 March 2024 202453831 H 31 March 2024 202443831 H
9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. ABREWER 11. PUBLIC MISSION ACTIVITIES EXPENSES, NET 1. AR EHEDREZH
Details of the remuneration of the five non-director highest paid employees hEFEEREHERAZMESFENT ! All direct and indirect expenses incurred for the primary and dominant MARES N EIBEBN NG E USRI TP
are as follows: purpose of public mission and that contribute to the successful running REIHEEN AR EwFT =% Z B B KkE

° of public mission activities as described in note 1 to the consolidated BEZHHWMALDREwENZH, BXEZHE

\ financial statements are considered as public mission activities expenses. Er
Such expenses comprise:

2024
HK$

Salaries and allowances e KOENG
(Including discretionary performance bonuses) (BHERBEESRMIEI) 15,891,582 16,528,125
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BIREFITTRIMERR 180,000 180,000
Staff costs AT 52,396,495 48,962,666
Information technology facilities maintenance fees AARIEERFER 23,640,814 25,279,253
16,071,582 16,708,125 : ) ) ) A A | 4
Financial assistance to industry start-ups ENARERe N2 91,586,978 91,865,327
_ _ ' Programme expenses (seminars, trainings, RIZE (Ya. B\l &
Ve Wil off tie nen=elseior ighest pel Eemidleiecs wiese MENFUTTEZFEERSHERAZHEN competitions, workshops and exhibitions) TR RR ) 51,407,859 22,742,959
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: T
_ Government rent and rates AR Kz 1w 333,537 339,878
C \ Public mission communications DA EE B 5,843,816 4,939,763
A 2024 [0 2028 \ Operating expenses o 14,216,606 6425331
Government project expenses BBz 43,992,619 32,145,205
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017875%E2,500,00078 7T 2 1 Recovery of direct expenses WEIEES
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001775 53,000,000 7T - 1 (including government grants of (BIEBURANBN 98,864,266 78 7T
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 75.%3,500,00057T 2 5 HK$98,864,266 (2023: HK$40,046,315)) (2023%F : 40,046,315787T)) (111,304,674) (49,634,213)
HK$4.500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 357 %5,000,0003E 7% 1 1 Fair value losses on debt investments at fair value BARMETNRRZ REERE
through profit or loss, net NANMBEFETHR 2,683,632 3,589,500
5 5
174,797,680 186,655,669
10. GOVERNMENT RENT AND RATES 10. AR =0 -
An analysis of t rent and rates is as foll TR ENZ ST 12. INCOME TAX 12. FRiG
n analysis of government rent and rates is as follows: b ° .
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group did BT AERBRFEFLT BT EEMALIRD
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year A, B R E BN SR ELKE (20234 !
2024 (2023: Nll] 3':_’)"
HK 3 S 27 . At — 1o
$ A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to the loss before tax at the ERTREBEERFITE ZHHE5HZHI
BT Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax amount at the Group's effective tax RS A KB KRR R 8 2 B a2 X
rate is as follows: T ~
Hotel BIE 756,400 744,400 ° \
Corporate office RENEL 16,525,763 14,460,506
2024
HK$
17,282,163 15,204,906 —
BT
Public Mission Teams (note 11) ARESEFA (HH5E11) 333,537 339,878
Loss before tax FRER TS 5 (190,673,802)  (246,552,505)
17,615,700 15,544,784

Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of 16.5% & &EBEAEMRE165%TEZ KT R (31,461,177) (40,681,163)

Income not subject to tax BIURR Z AN (22,914,327) (17,933,946)
Expenses not deductible for tax ARz FF 2 1,325 16,421

Tax losses not recognised KHIAZ IS 15 54,374,179 58,598,688
Tax amount at the Group’s effective tax rate AR ERF LRI E 2 BAn - -
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A N A N
ZallSIRERME ZallSIRERME
31 March 2024 202453831 H 31 March 2024 202443831 H
13. DEFERRED TAX 13. BB 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥k, MBRISE

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows: BRI A= R AR Tehil T © L
Buildings
Losses Depreciation ‘ services
EVENEL] in excess and support ~ Information
for offsetting of related Building Hotel facilities technology Leasehold ~ Furniture and
against future depreciation held for rental building #F facilities Centres  improvements equipment Motor  Construction
taxable profits allowance Fifet il &5 RMBE  equipment i1 Hhs vehicles  in progress
AIEAIEIRS ITIHEBHE X £ £ 3] i3] ik R & & EEIR
SRR ELIRH A% & Others Total HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK Hi$
A Z S5 2ZEH Hit 2it A A A7 A A A #n
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ (note (i)
I AT T T (I3
At 1 April 2022 F2022F481H (177,365,695) 177,371,868 (6,173) - Cost i
At April 2022 FunEAIR 3OTI3TT6  2LS3TD 1363593328 228918791 80886206 230214860 245209482 70000 245325952 6208919929
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to ERTF#Hm Gt N) Addition BE - - £200837 T403.488 - 169,673 84 16,840,104 - 206,656,780 442,775,085
profit or loss during the year PR Z BB IERL I (46,514,094) 47,056,088 (541,994) - Disposal writen of e /1 - - - (i) - - L0 - - 6343
At 31 March 2023 and F20235F3/31 5K A 31 March 2003 FUOREEUA  SSEIBT MG LASIIGIS I35 GOBS2SH  DAGERSDS  24BORIE  TIOOOD  AST9B0306  bSTSSSESHs
1 Aprit 2023 2023543 TH (223,879.789)  224.427.956 (548,167) B Adiion i - SBIm 180 B 1 Y 1 - DUBIATL 220124581
Disposalwiten of e /i - - (bnes) (389,904 - (snel (1911363) - - [317e50)
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to ERTF#Hm Gt N)
profit or loss during the year OBk 2 2B FERE I (13,581,071) 14,365,189 (784,118) -
At 31 March 2024 Fuug3pA 3551123776 274,937,912 1,430,169,795 172,479,386 60,886,256 417,199,217 234,213,959 710,000 2,597,314,278  8745,034,577
At 31 March 2024 F2024F3831H (237,460,860) 238,793,145 (1,332,285) -
Depreciation and impairment fiRRAE
Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences arising T T B AE 755 0 o SR 7R A 3 1) 25 TN AR 3% At 1 April 2022 FInERR 1380566216 107196012 1209445487 213858522 60886254 107236199 18007487 710000 - 32657353
from tax losses carried forward due to uncertainty of realisation of the B, BRSBTS IR A2 B E Depreciaton charge forhe year SRR TR SO BN 380388 - BRI B - -l
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits. As at 31 March 2024, TN R IER AT, F20244E3831 8, && Disposaluriten of e /i - - - (1m0 - - (13%037) - - (el09g0n
the Group had unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$3,503,000,000 H > R HIAR IS #149793,503,000,0003 7T (2023
(2023: approximately HK$3,173,000,000). The tax losses have no expiry £ 1 #93,173,000,0003870) o 7T S 15 3 & 2 2R
date and are yet to be agreed by the Inland Revenue Department. B, BAZFHSEHIA At31 March 2023 FunksRsA 1,663,709,181 113,151,366 1232525807 155543355 60,886,256 133,989,307 189,720,064 710,000 - 3,350,235,29
Depreciation charge for the year — ERFIRR 71,142,965 593533 RVl 458885 - 38948,124 2193298 - - 175,949,998
Disposal written off HE /1% - - (6728547) (389.904) - (T454598)  (18,650502) - - (31.423551)
At 31 March 2024 FouEsRsA 160,852,146 119,106,680 1,255,318,681 159,742,307 60,886,256 104,882,833 193,262,840 710,000 - 396,761,741
Net book value Tas
At 31 March 2024 FAUEIE3NR 2018271630 15,631,232 174,851,114 12737079 - 252,316,384 491,119 - M9T36218 528027283
At 31 March 2023 FNBEE3NE 2034165% 161788566 17327038 15,699,899 - 2089199 58312309 - 41980306 322531322
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31 March 2024 202493831 H
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Notes:

150

0]

(iv)

On 22 May 2000, the Government of the HKSAR granted the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph
Bay, Pokfulam to the immediate holding company of the Company for a term of 50 years at
a lump sum initial premium of HK$1,000 and an annual rent of an amount equal to 3% of the
rateable value of the said Lot from time to time.

On 24 May 2000, the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement with the immediate
holding company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam
(the "Cyberport Portion”) has been sub-leased to the Company from the immediate holding

company at nil rental.

On 1 December 2022, the Government of the HKSAR granted the Inland Lot No. 9082 at
Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam to the immediate holding company of the Company for a term of 50
years at a lump sum initial premium of HK$1,000 and an annual rent of an amount equal to 3%

of the rateable value of the said Lot from time to time.

On 9 December 2022, the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement with the immediate
holding company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No. 9082 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam
(the “Cyberport Portion") has been sub-leased to the Company from the immediate holding
company at nil rental.

The buildings are situated on the leasehold land granted.

Centres equipment represents equipment of Entrepreneurship Centre and Technology Centre

funded by government grant and used for the purpose of the designated projects.

As at 31 March 2024, the fair value of the buildings held for rental and the hotel building
amounted to HK$6,663 million (2023: HK$6,730 million) and HK$400 million (2023: HK$402
million), respectively. The aggregate carrying value of such assets amounted to HK$2,016
million (2023: HK$2,093 million) and HK$156 million (2023: HK$162 million), respectively.
The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the associated buildings
services and support facilities) and the hotel building as at 31 March 2024 and 2023 were
determined based on a valuation carried out by Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited,

an independent professional valuer.

The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the associated building services
and support facilities) and the hotel building falls within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
and is determined using the income capitalisation approach by discounting the expected

rental income using a capitalisation rate adjusted for the quality and location of the buildings.
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

14. ¥k, MBRIEEF (&)

F200055822H, ERRXBAAAQGERITRARM
H— A FERMMETAMERS969 S 2 13, —RIEIE
N I91,00087T, EEMAA0E, MEFNHESSTELT
3R B S BY B R R 1A AR (E 3%

F2000F58248, ARARSEEERATITII—HOBED
W, L, AABMERERARDBEIMNLTRMER
8969 S HA—ER T ith ("BIDHEE S "), BAZNHEE.

F2022128 18, EERXBNRAQEEETRATM
H— IR F R AL SR 90825 2 L #th, —RMEADIA
N F1,00087T, EHABRN0E, MEFNHESSTEST
3R S R BY Y R R = 1 AR E 3%0

F2022F12898, ARBDSEHIERABRTII—HBHAED
W, B, AATMERZERABSEERMNETARER
9082 S HAR—Fhy T Hth (BB S, BML TS,

ZERFUTRMBRL M,

IR E T RTAN BN BB A FHEEME Z Rk REH
DFREROZ&E.

F2024F38318, HELABRFRESEFZAANES
B4 66.631Z8 7T (20234 : 67.30127#7T) K412 7T (2023
F 4020870 BRERFZKESENFIN20.1612ET
(20234 : 20.931Z3#7T) R 1.5612 7T (20234 : 1.62127%
7)o REREREET CERBXZEFRS S X IELH)
FBE T F2024F % 202383831 HZ R AN ETHIRIER
B \EEIFE D ERY LR (F8) BRABMTZEE
EE.

FEHTART GERIEX Z RTRS 5 2RI’ MBERT
ZARMEBTFAANEERPZE=F, HERBBRNER
WAREE, HEANRBERBERET ZRERMRIEHIE
B2 AP ERB AT RN NI E,

15. LEASES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office premises, office equipment,
information technology facilities, storage area and accommodation used
in its operations. Lease of office premises has a lease term of six years,
while office equipment, information technology facilities and storage area
have lease terms of five years, and an accommodation has a lease term
of two years. There are several lease contracts that include variable lease
payments, which are further discussed below.

(a) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the

movements during the year are as follows:

15.

SelISIRETMFE

31 March 2024 202453831 H
il
TERAFEREBEA
FEFAREEEREANDATYL . HAFR
&, BAARRIEH. BERREBEITEARES
4, hAEYUMBRERNAE, MHAER
&, AR EHREERNASRHEIAE, &
BHARBEARE. AERTEHIETEET
THRFMROAE Y, HEFXHE—FIER,

(a) fEANE
KREFRIEANAE T 2 IKEE R FER T

s 2 ~—

Office Office

premises equipment Accommodation

DREYIL DAEIEH £

HK$ HK$ HK$

AT BT #AIT
As at 1 April 2022 F2022F481H 2,719,726 161,759 476,599 3,358,084
Depreciation charge RAFZ (1,554,120) (136,851) (476,599) (2,167,570)

As at 31 March 2023 and F2023FE3H31A &

as at 1 April 2023 F2023F4B1H 1,165,606 24,908 - 1,190,514
Additions wE 9,352,940 512,584 - 9,865,524
Depreciation charge RAFXZ (2,163,316) (195,769) - (2,359,085)
As at 31 March 2024 F2024F3831H 8,355,230 341,723 - 8,696,953
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31 March 2024 202443831 H
15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

152

(b)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the

year are as follows:

2024
HK$
T
Carrying amount at 1 April FLABZKHEE 1,279,666 3,534,463
Additions nE 9,865,524 -
Accretion of interest recognised during the year FERFINZFSIGIR 142,257 47,963
Payments [BE (2,366,220) (2,302,760)
Carrying amount at 31 March F3B3HAZKEE 8,921,227 1,279,666
Analysed into: DR
Current portion RENEB Y 2,962,277 1,279,666
Non-current portion FERNBL D 5,958,950 -
8,921,227 1,279,666
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 32(a) to HAEAEZIRITEEE M SHRERME
the consolidated financial statements. 32(a) NI EE,
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as () FHRmPMBEERIAZESIMMNOT :

follows:

Interest on lease liabilities

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

Variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities (included in
other operating expenses)

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Cyberport 2023/24 Annual Report

15. fAE ()
EEREREBAN (42
(b) MERE

HEEAGZKEERFAZNT

2024
HK$
ETT
MR GRS 142,257 47,963
ERAMREF T IBFF X 2,359,085 2,167,570
ENAPNEL i g A S
I3 Ot AAMEERH)
490,940 580,298
TRAEPHINZ SET 2,992,282 2,795,831

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(d) Variable lease payments

The Group has a lease contract for an office equipment that contains
variable payments based on the meter rate of additional printout. The
term is negotiated by management for the office equipment that is
used to print without steady usage. Management's objective is to align
the lease expense with the additional printout. The following provides
information on the Group's variable lease payments, including the
magnitude in relation to fixed payments:

SEMSIREME
31 March 2024 202443831 H

15. A5 (&)

FERAFEAEBA (82)

(d)

AIZEENT

FEFATE—NDAERENEESYS, H
FESREHMIMTENANEEHIT BN E
R ZEFREHEEEMBEITENEHT
BEREBNNAERERHE. EEEZEHN
RERETHSFIMTENBAENT. T&RIE
MEXRFTEANDTEEEMNRZ AR, B

BXREENRZIBE

[ ]

2024

Fixed Variable

payments payments

B {37 CIE:3REA

Fixed rent EEMAE

AT AT

171,600 - 171,600

Fixed rent EEfAE
REZAEERE

Variable rent only

In addition, the Group leased a warehouse which contains a variable
lease payment term that is based on the Group's storage per carton
box in the warehouse. The amount of the variable lease payments
recognised in profit or loss for the current year for the lease is
HK$490,940 (2023: HK$473,895).

(e) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 27(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

2023
Fixed Variable
payments payments
ERNEN EIESNEN
HK$ HK$
BT BT
104,000 - 104,000
- 106,403 106,403
104,000 106,403 210,403

tesh, mEREA—INEE, HEANEEIR
BAEFRERCAS N RBEETEMTEN
AISHEMARNER. RAFEFENHEERE
M PHIAZ eI BB R09490,940 8 70
(20234 : 473,895 7T) -

AENIERAESMESEEMSIRRME
27(b) NI &
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The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain buildings (note 14) in Hong Kong under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases also require the tenants to
pay a security deposit. Rental income recognised by the Group during the
year was HK$273,135,520 (2023: HK$228,407,148), details of which are
included in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

Within one year —FENR
After one year but within two years —FEERFA
After two years but within three years WEFREB=FN
After three years but within four years =FEENER
After four years but within five years MEFBRENRN
After five years AFRE

Cyberport 2023/24 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SelSIRETMFE
31 March 2024 202453831 H

15. LEASES (continued) 15. fAE ()

FERAEAHBEA
AERAREBLERRRHLASEETHT (W
F14)o MEFRAERBAFAZMRIES.
BRERNTERBFAZARIEE. AEATERN
MIAZ AW N 273,135,520 7T (20234
228,407,148787%) , BXRIFBEHTHREV SIREKM
o

FiIREHE, AERREBSHELITIIHN R AR
2275 T B T 2R SR HA 18] Rz U B9 =K 37 T AR 55 A9 SR 40
e e

2024
HK$
ABIT

202,202,614 208,076,465

102,564,714 125,794,188
52,271,246 57,957,241
18,240,029 38,795,692
14,885,604 19,974,409

= 19,440,120

390,164,207 470,038,115

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. CYBERPORT MACRO FUND INVESTMENTS

Equity investments designated at fair value

- Unlisted equity investments, at fair value

Debt investments at fair value through
profit or loss

- Unlisted debt investments, at fair value

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group did not recognise any
dividend income (2023: Nil) from the equity investments held at the end of
the reporting period.

The above debt investments were hybrid contracts consisting of a bond
and an embedded derivative. They were mandatorily classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest.

To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable start-
ups, the Group has launched the CMF for Hong Kong-based digital
entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size of HK$200 million, the CMF
aims to provide Cyberport's start-ups with early financing and promote
the development of venture capital ecosystem in Hong Kong. In April 2021,
Cyberport had committed to inject an additional amount of HK$200 million
into the CMF and extend the scope to cover Series B and later-stage
investments.

SEMSIREME
31 March 2024 202443831 H

16. HIBARZALESIRE

2024
HK$

BERAANEITAE 2 EmkE
through other comprehensive income ZIBAIgE

—FLEHRERE, BRANMNE 78,188,704 119,976,069

BAsMETABHEZHGSRE

—FLEHESER, BRAANE - 5,876,221

78,188,704 125,852,290

HFAERANNZFRABRKMER, KERK
FRAFAREHEBEER QAN EITANEMEE
Was.

HE2024F3831BHIEFE, AEFAHLHIAEK
BREHARMISENRALE ZEAE S WA
(20234 : &)o

ERBRSRANARFRBRARNTETEARZ
BREAH. ARRFEDERNRRAANEIT NIRRT
ZERE, RENEGANEREHIENAL
ARERNF o

RE—F MAREAX A B oI d L 2 a2
&, AEHET2017FREAEDE) L KB 3
BEERAULES, BEELRVVESNBEE
BMAMIZETT, SENEDET AR WIRERHE
MAAFREESBINRERESHENLE. T
202148, BEBREAHEELRINVES
TINFRFIZ BT, HIT AEBRKREHNK R,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SelSIRETMFE
31 March 2024 202453831 H

17.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Current assets RENEE
BARMET NRT 2 RE

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Total Sat

(a) Investments at fair value through profit or loss

17. iEHIRE
2024
HK$
T

581,518,836 653,239,404

581,518,836 653,239,404

() BARNEITNRBEZRE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

At beginning of year F47
HINRESIR (HF6)

Impairment losses recognised (note 6)

At end of year FR

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a

SEMSIREME
31 March 2024 202443831 H

18. BIURTKER (4)

KRR 2 BB S BRI E LT

2024

HK$

BT
3,322,226 1,322,109
4,752,226 2,000,117
8,074,452 3,322,226

FEATERSBMERKREEBEHRTRED

2024 provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are i, BUTETHERSHR. REXDHREABFE
HK$ based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with SRR (BIRHEBENE. FRRE. P
e similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer BRITRURERIEREMER Z ERERRZE
type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit =EE) ZENBEFRDEARZEARBETE.
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the ZITE R INNER. T E N E R T
Listed fixed interest debt securities: FHEERERBIES time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that REBBTREERIEEM. SRR RARR
- In Hong Kong — EEIER 55,873,467 77.937.431 is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions ZFRRTNz GBI EER. —Mms, MK
. i iti i 2 001360 B B — REREIHTEIE, N
- Outside Hong Kong _E 445,471,312 548,350 666 and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables T SR a0 i8 BB — F B R GIRITR M, WF
are written off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to DU EH
Unlisted but quoted fixed interest debt securities  IF_ETHEERNEEF BESIES 80,174,057 26,951,307 .
enforcement activity.
581,518,836 653,239,404 Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the DU EFIE R AL E 6 IR & B 2 [ IR R 2
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: SRR TR
Zh
18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. m“&m&ﬂ As at 31 March 2024 F2024%F3H31H [
T Past due
bl
L Less than  One to three Over three
BT Current one month months months
EPEA LF—1RB —E=1A #3d=1H
Trade receivables Bz s e R 52,710,948 31,321,571
Impairment B8 (8,074,452) (3,322,226) Expected credit loss rate FEERTIRE 0% 5.48% 7.26% 38.25% 15.32%
Gross carrying amount (HK$) KE2E (B 17,802,437 9,265,623 7,230,326 18,412,562 52,710,948
44,636,496 27,999,345 Expected credit losses (HK$) ARSI (B) - 507,352 524,821 7,042,279 8,074,452
The credit period given to customers is generally 0 to 30 days. The BFEFZERHE—RNOEIR, AEHEHE As at 31 March 2023 F2023%3831H °
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to FE A& P i ELAR UK [E] 2 B2 WU RR T LA {65 15 63 XU B P =2 C

minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior =f. BHEFHEREEEEHFIR. EH Past due
FEBEN W KRS RFE T AR RKETE a8

E IR EE. MUK N R B,

management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit

enhancement over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
) . Less than One to three Over three
non-interest-bearing.

Current one month months months

B LF—E —E=ME BEENA

Expected credit loss rate MAERTIRE 0% 11.07% 15.57% 16.86% 10.61%
Gross carrying amount (HK$) IKEEE (BrT) 9,779,750 4,585,076 3,371,351 13,585,394 31,321,571
Expected credit losses (HK$) FEAE TS (B7T) - 507,352 524,821 2,290,053 3,322,226
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SZESIREME
31 March 2024 202443831 H

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19. FfSTRIA. $&& K H it B U kI

P

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

SEMSIREME
31 March 2024 202443831 H
20. MEKRMEEEHHE

2024
HK$
BT
Prepayments FRAT FRIA 11,685,626 10,816,918
Lease incentives FAEME 39,876 4,319,968
Deposits paid for premises leasing MW BEEZ G2 kE 325,620 -
Other deposits Hitige 1,998,732 1,591,899
Other receivables E At W Fram 33,326,858 25,394,095
47,376,712 42,122,880
Impairment RIE (14,660,785) (8,497,518)
32,715,927 33,625,362
Analysed into: DA
Non-current portion Eli=isa 2,758,292 2,432,671
Current portion mohEs 5 29,957,635 31,192,691
32,715,927 33,625,362

Impairment of deposits and other receivables

The carrying amount of deposits and other receivables approximated to
their fair value as at 31 March 2024 and 2023. Provision for impairment
on deposits and other receivables is measured as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime
expected credit losses. In assessing the expected credit loss of deposits
and other receivables, management considers various factors such as the
ageing of the balances, existence of disputes, recent historical payment
patterns, any other available information concerning the creditworthiness
of counterparties and forward-looking information. Management uses this
information to determine whether a provision for impairment is required
either for a specific counterparty or for certain counterparties’ balances
that have similar loss patterns overall. The provision for impairment
of other receivables at 31 March 2024 was HK$14,660,785 (2023:
HK$8,497,518).

Cyberport 2023/24 Annual Report

¥e< K HA R WL FRIR 2 R B
F2024F K% 2023E3H31H, BEMEMMNUER
Mz WEHESEAANEES. KeREMNIR
MM BEKRER 12T BAE RS RSN
HERSIHNITE, NP EERNKRBENTHIALUE
BEABIEINME. it S UGN 2 15 5 XU B 4
FHPIALCRARIG I, WRAEREBETHEERS
Wit 2B, FiFdiRs Kk E R IR0 2 RS 5
SN, BEEZERLZMEAR, FIINGSERMKE.
BEEGEEMUY. FHPEIFESZAER. 5RENH
B9 15 & B X B9 o] E At AT 15 28 k) LA Ke il B 1 25
o BERFAXERRRINERSANRE—FF
ERXZWHNEAELEBELEUSHREANE TS
WH 2z ERIEH B ERE. F2024%38318,
EAh R IGRIN 2R B R % 79 14,660,785 78 7T (2023
£ 1 8,497,518787T) o

2024
HK$
BT
Cash and bank balances WM& MIRTERF 233,352,244 114,725,748
Non-pledged time deposit with an original maturity of FRENRIBHAEALVF=AAZ
less than three months when acquired FTACIRE BAERR 746,539,914 143,389,589
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of FRENFRIPEA=PAULZ
more than three months when acquired TR EERE R 253,587,993 68,279,468

1,233,480,151 326,394,805

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit RITI R RIBE HETERN X LUZ oI ZEBREX
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between one month FME. TEEMRMFEAERZ BN & 5K
and one year depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, T, GTRBENFE—1BE—FTE, HUEZHE
and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances ZEHERFEBREANE, BTEENRESHER
and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent FENEBRHEEAILR BEERKFZET.

history of default.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SelSIRETMFE
31 March 2024 202453831 H

21. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 21. Efth Sz {F FRI0 K2 B2 3t 25 BB 22. RENTAL AND OTHER DEPOSITS
Included in rental deposits are amounts of HK$47,035,170 (2023:

HK$44,755,419) which are not expected to be settled within one year.

2024
HK$ 23. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWING
BT
Contract liabilities =Rk (a) 3,576,470 2,040,980
Other payables ELfth R (< 7RI (b) 10,500,861 193,436
Accruals [/ 11 2% 214,775,516 176,025,519
Receipt in advance FAUSRR I 15,874,314 16,203,413
Government grants BT+ B2 534,703,531 50,165,008
Provisions k& 8,163,792 8,163,792
Other loan - unsecured HMETR - FHii
787,594,484 252,792,148

Portion classified as current liabilities DEIREN DRI (778,562,627)  (252,792,148)

Non-current portion AERmEhE 7 9,031,857 -
Notes: B -
Analysed into: DA
Details of contract liabiliti follows: S47E) o *~— X N .
(a) etails of contract liabilities are as follows (a) SHRNEIFBENT . Other borrowing repayable: EA R AR LS
2024 In the third year to fifth years, BF=FRE ()
HK$ inclusive
BT
Short-term advances received from customers [BIE FIER Z FZHE B Note:
Income from hotel operation SBIEE WA 3,576,470 2,040,980
(a) As at 31 March 2024, the borrowing is denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.
The increase in contract liabilities in 2024 was mainly due to the increase in short-term Fo024 FEAMRENMEERTF AR W Z BEHER T4
advances received from customers at the end of the year. FEERE T 24. DEVELOPMENT MAINTENANCE FUND
It represents a fund received by the Group in accordance with the
(b)  The other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of three months or (b) HtNAHRMARE, EYBERI=TE, RE—FRE terms of a project agreement entered into among the Company, the
not repayable within a year. Fo

immediate holding company, HKCADL, Pacific Century Cyberworks
Limited (now renamed as PCCW Limited) and Cyber-Port Limited on 17
May 2000 (the "Project Agreement”). Pursuant to the Project Agreement,
the purpose of the fund is for upkeep and maintenance of the common
telecommunications, media and information technology facilities available
to the tenants and visitors (the “Shared Cyberport facilities").

Upon acquisition of relevant assets for replacements, the costs of the
acquired assets will be transferred from the Development Maintenance
Fund (the "DMF") account to the Capital Reserve account in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy.

During the year, the Shared Cyberport facilities of HK$1,570,349 (2023:
HK$7,403,488) were acquired and funded by the DMF. Accordingly, this
amount has been transferred from the DMF to the Capital Reserve account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEMSIREME
31 March 2024 202443831 H

AR E S
HEREUERBRET —EREMN ZHRA

47,035,170787T (20234F : 44,755,419787T) o

HEER

Effective

interest

rate (%) Maturity

FRFIE

(%) ZRAE

5.25 2026 1,263,000,000

24,

1,263,000,000

1,263,000,000

FE
(@)  F202443831H, EHRUBTITE,

LRSEEES

ZMEERAEAREBEANT. BEERA
Bl. HKCADL. BBEHIEmAHERAR (FIREIR
BRBRAE) AT BERATF200055817
B8 T 2 S35 R (I RIiY) 2 &
FTURER 2 E %o RIBITIDIN, ZMEERER
FREBEBARITEERZEABM. BEK
ARG (RSB RIS .

RIEREHAZ ZUTBE, FTHEBEXESLUEE
G, EMERFZRENRREEBES ("RE
HEES") WRRKRERKTEEIK .

FW, £5H1,570,3498 7 (20234 : 7,403,488
BT) CHEEEAREERRBECESHE
FHREES, Bit, ZEFMEMNRBEEES
BRERLMEEWKS,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SZESIREME
31 March 2024 202443831 H
25. SHARE CAPITAL

Issued and fully paid: BARITRERE :
1,998,000,002 (2023: 984,000,002) ordinary shares

A summary of the movements in the Group's share capital is as follows:

25. Bg7s

2024
HK$

1,998,000,00208 (20234 :
984,000,0020%) @&

1,998,000,002 984,000,002

RERRATEEHRINT ~

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$9,865,524 (2023: Nil)
and HK$9,865,524 (2023: Nil), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for office premises.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Number of
shares Share
in issue capital

BX{TRHEE

At 1 April 2022 F2022%F481H
New issues (Note) WmET (MF)

At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023
New issues (Note) WmET (MF)

At 31 March 2024 F2024%3831H

Note: On 15 June 2022, 446,000,000 ordinary shares were issued at HK$1 per share to the existing
shareholders of the Company, which resulted in proceeds of HK$446,000,000.

On 3 July 2023 and 15 January 2024, 714,000,000 and 300,000,000 of ordinary shares were
issued at HK$1 per share respectively, to the existing shareholders of the Company, which
resulted in total proceeds of HK$1,014,000,000.

26. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.
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538,000,002 538,000,002
446,000,000 446,000,000

F2023% 38318 &%2023F481H 984,000,002 984,000,002

1,014,000,000 1,014,000,000

1,998,000,002 1,998,000,002

ME © F2022868150, RERIBITHNEARABDNERFTL
17446,000,000% Z B, FR1GFTISFRINL46,000,00077T0

F2023F7H3HKR2024F1F 158, HAIRER1ETHN
BAZA AT KA & 17714,000,000 4% 52 300,000,000 2 & i
B, RISFISFRTUREN1,014,000,000 % 7T0

26. &

FEATAFERIEFEZEESHRELR
2T EENE TR,

At 1 April 2022

Changes from financing cash flows
Realisation of government grants
Interest expense

Interest paid classified as operating
cash flows

At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023
Changes from financing cash flows
Realisation of government grants
New leases

New other borrowing

Interest expense

Interest paid classified as operating
cash flows

At 31 March 2024

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases
statement of cash flows is as follows:

Within operating activities

Within financing activities

F2022%F48 18
BMANERBLED

K BEEI

FRh
NENEENEREZENFIE

F2023F3831HRF2023F4H1H
AL HEL

RN )

i

Hh#rfE st

FIBZH
DERNEZEYLFEZELFE

F2024%3831H

included in the consolidated

ELEEDA
ERZIERIA

SESIREME
31 March 2024 202443831 H

27. ZRUERERMNFE

() FEIMERS

FR, KEAMDRAEY 2 AELHRE
MERANEAFZ N ARENRBE AT
9,865,524 7T (20234 : =) 29,865,524

BT (20234 1 F),

(b) RFEFBEFRAF-ERGER

Government

grants included

in other
Interest-bearing WEVELCIENT Lease
borrowing accruals liabilities

WNEftRE
IR Fr it 22
e fEE Z BB

#BT
- 61,824,524 3,534,463
- 71,501,310 (2,254,797)
- (83,160,826) -
- - 47,963
- - (47,963)
- 50,165,008 1,279,666
- 524,859,054 (2,223,963)
- (40,320,531) -
- - 9,865,524
1,263,000,000 - -
- - 142,257
- - (142,257)
1,263,000,000 534,703,531 8,921,227

(c) EHEZAEFH LD
TAREASRBRZARNS R 250

T8 -
2024
HK$
BT
633,197 654,261
2,223,963 2,254,797
2,857,160 2,909,058
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31 March 2024 202443831 H

28. COMMITMENTS 28. 738

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the RERFFIREIHRE U TFEAREIE,
reporting period.

2024
HK$
BT
Contracted, but not provided for in respect of: BEITHEXRIESE
Property, plant and equipment k. WIS E 207,881,750 330,563,164
29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. XBXARB
(a) The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the HKSAR () EARBEHEAFXBFELMEE K AR

via The Financial Secretary Incorporated. In accordance with
revised HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures issued by the HKICPA,
government-related entities and their subsidiaries, directly or
indirectly controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by
the Government of the HKSAR are defined as related parties of the
Group. On that basis, related parties include the immediate holding
company and its subsidiaries (other than the Company), government-
related entities and their subsidiaries, other entities and corporations
in which the Group is able to control or exercise significant influence
and key management personnel of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, approximately 5% (2023: 6%)
of the Group's revenue was rental income, building management
income and other facilities income derived from the Government of
the HKSAR. All these services are conducted in the normal course of
business and in accordance with the Group's pricing policy.

(b) The balances with the immediate holding company and fellow (b)
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(c) Details of the compensation of the key management personnel of the (c)

Group in respect of their services rendered to the Group are disclosed
in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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2R AE. RIEEBZITMAZMABZELE
VEBSITENSE 24 S KEKSREZNE,
REBEBFXBMNEZEREEES. HEE
3 32 B B AR R 2 BURF AR X SR K E [t /B
RE, YRENEEAZ XKTG. RIEZ
i, XS BEERERABLKEMER
8 (ARERIN . BUTHEXEERERER
8. REHERISAIEMERZmZ B
KR Al IR AN 2 TR EIEA R

HZE2024FE3831 HIEFEE, KEEBRKX
Bz BAN. BFEERNREMIZHE
N 5 A EFAWN Z5% (20234 : 6%)
FIEZEREVEERE VST IEPRAERA
ZEMBER#HTT,

SEEEZERARANBRNB AR ZERYN
TR RERIZEREE,

FEFFEEE A RAAERR MRS MR
SN ZMEMFETEREVSIRETOMES
KW B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SelISIRETMFE
31 March 2024 202453831 H

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30. I{AFR S HWERTH

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments at FEANEMTAFREARZIKEEDT :
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 March 2024 2024%3831H
Financial assets FRE —

[ ]

Financial assets
at fair value

through other

comprehensive
income Financial assets at fair value

BARME through profit or loss
HAEfLHE BRRNETNREZ
Wis 2 BRIA ERES

Financial

Mandatorily assets at

designated amortised cost

Equity as such Debt b 3w
investments BElEER investments Gz Total
R E e RERA A" 2it
Deferred rental receivables IR WA & - = 3 4,243,654 4,243,654
Cyberport Macro Fund investments HIBER RV ELER 78,188,704 - - - 78,188,704
Investments in securities EHRA - 581,518,836 - - 581,518,836
Trade receivables IV die - - - 44,636,496 44,636,496

Financial assets included in WATIFI, e REM
prepayments, deposits R 2 EREF
and other receivables - - - 20,990,425 20,990,425
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries — RZUX[E £ i /E A BIFIR - - - 991,869 991,869
Cash and cash equivalents NekN&EENE 5 = - 1,233,480,151 1,233,480,151
78,188,704 581,518,836 - 1,304,342,595 1,964,050,135
Financial liabilities ERA R -—

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

PSR AT Z

ERlfG

HK$

#IT

Trade payables N AT KRR 321,409,611
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals it NE Rz {50 [t 25 > SR & 228,739,594
Rental and other deposits HeMHEMEE 113,688,803
Amount due to the immediate holding company R AT BT IR A BRI 254,303,568
Lease liabilities RN 8,921,277
Interest-bearing borrowing TEER 1,263,000,000

2,190,062,803
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SZESIREME
31 March 2024 202493831 H

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

31 March 2023
Financial assets

Deferred rental receivables
Cyberport Macro Fund investments
Investments in securities

Trade receivables

Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals

Rental and other deposits

BN WS
HEERANIESRA
IEFRA

RZYS KR

TTARRIKR. RENEH M
RIS SRR

VLG EYNTE
NeERNEEEE

Amount due to the immediate holding company

Lease liabilities
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Financial assets
at fair value

through other

comprehensive

30. WAV SHWEMTA (»)

2023%E3H31H

TR

income
BARMNE Financial assets at fair value
ITAEHfME through profit or loss
7 BARNET & ;
Financial
Mandatorily assets at
designated amortised cost
Equity as such Debt BRRAA
investments RHTREN investments 5z
BRALE %5 RERH ERAT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
- - - 6,525,764 6,525,764
119,976,069 - 5,876,221 - 125,852,290
- 653,239,404 - - 653,239,404
- - - 27,999,345 27,999,345
- - - 18,488,476 18,488,476
_ - - 201,442 201,442
- - - 326,394,805 326,394,805
119,976,069 653,239,404 5,876,221 379,609,832 1,158,701,526
ERA R

VAN

HEREMRE
Rz BT IR A BRI

HHER G

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

RIEHATIRZ

T NEMRE (N FRIUR Rt 25 AR 2 2 i £ £

TR P (5
HK$
BT

72,459,276
192,436,064
103,973,471
254,303,568

1,279,666

624,452,045
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INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments,
other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to
fair values, are as follows:

Carrying amounts

Financial assets BRI
Equity investments designated BERAANET NEM
at fair value through other SEWNEZ BAKRE

SEMSIREME
31 March 2024 202443831 H

31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 31. ERITEZAAMERIANMESE

FEFATHTAZKEERQAANE (KAES
RAANBEEBEEZERIT AR WO :

P——

Fair values

[5ME

comprehensive income 78,188,704 119,976,069 78,188,704 119,976,069

Debt investments at fair value BARMET N
through profit or loss RBRE 5,876,221 - 5,876,221
Investments in securities ISR A 581,518,836 653,239,404 581,518,836 653,239,404
659,707,540 779,091,694 659,707,540 779,091,694

The Group has assessed that the fair values of deferred rental receivables,
trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, balances with fellow
subsidiaries and the immediate holding company, trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and rental and other
deposits approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following method and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value:

The fair values of the lease liabilities have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
changes in fair values as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk
for lease liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 were assessed
to be insignificant.

FEFAEFABLENWEES. MEKR. AT
AT BEREMNKRANZ /A~ A
ERNFEWME. SARRBRABRERIERA
BlZ &R MM T NE AR RRIUN fz 3
BRZERNGR. HERAMREZ ANNES
HIKEERE, TERTRETAETERNIIE.

STREACRESRAGZAANEUTFEHER
(GRIBIER B ERIN) HITZ HAIRZHRIET
BNSIMAK. FHAERRIEAFETARN
& :

BEAGRZARNETLERIN TSN EIME
M. ERNRRRTERNTREZ R, K
KROUSHREFMNMITE. AAREFE S F2024
3831 B&2023438 31 At R A GRABHR
BARBTF=ERAANMMEENEITEN R EKR.
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31.

168

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of nine (2023: ten) unlisted equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as at 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2023 have been estimated using the market-based valuation
technique based on assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the Directors to determine
comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage
and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as
enterprise value to sales (“EV/S") multiple, for each comparable company
identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of
the comparable company by sales measure. The Directors believe that
the estimated fair values resulting from the valuations carried out by an
independent professional valuer, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes in fair values,
which are recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and
that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period.

The fair values of two (2023: nine) unlisted equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as at 31 March 2024 and
31 March 2023 have been estimated using the recent market transaction
prices.

The fair values of one unlisted debt investment at fair value through
profit or loss as at 31 March 2023 has been estimated using the market-
based valuation technigue based on assumptions that are not supported
by observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires the Directors
to determine comparable public companies (peers) based on industry,
size, leverage and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price multiple,
such as EV/S multiple, for each comparable company identified. The
Directors believe that the estimated fair value resulting from the valuation
carried out by an independent professional valuer, which is recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
changes in fair value, which are recorded in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, is reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at the end of the reporting period. During the period, the relevant
investment was reclassified to a fair value through other comprehensive
income investment with a fair value of approximately HK$3.2 million on
the reclassification date. Accordingly, a loss of HK$2,683,632 had been
recognized in profit or loss.
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M. EMIARZAAMERLIANEEFR

()

F20244E3831 HX202343831H, EERAR
METAEMEERE 2 A (20234 © +100) 3F
EHRAKREZ ARNEERA TS NEER
BRI, RIBHFHIMBHNREBEXRIFZR
RFTEIT. HITEER, EERAERIETIL.
ME. IIFRRBEREEATLERARAT (B
W), HHUEENIRFINAI LR ABITESENNE
3 (Bl W OMEBEE) . ZERTLIZAT LR A
AN NERUEEITTERFMITE. EHIA
A, FIREPAREBIRTL E G E TG G
NANE (FANREMSRRER) RARNEZE
Xy GtANEMemEl=) BEIE, HAaxRaE
K&,

F20244E3831 HX202343831H, EERAR
METAEMEmEREZ Z I (20234 : AM) 3F
THRAREZ AANEERBITBEHRIRRN
fEHEIT,

F2023%F3831H, BARMEIT NiRzm 2z —I
FLEHEESEAZAANEERBTHEES
%, RIBHIFBPIMBEH N R ERZF 2 RigH
Tt HITHEER, EERERBETL. M
R AR SRBESREE R LR AR AR (Fk),
FREE BRI N LR AT E S ENIEEE
(Flan W ERER) . EHINA, FREBRRA
IR B A EIITE 2 AT A RNE GEALR
EMBZRRAR) RAANEZEXTE (GFALER
Efimk) BEE, FARGEZNE. B,
HXBRETEMDRBENORERLAANET
ANEfeEmiE 2 %R, RANELNRI205E
Too At FzMIAS 12,683,632 7T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at
31 March 2024 and 2023:

SESIREME
31 March 2024 202493831 H

31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 31. 2 TEZAANMERLAANEZE

()

IR AT 20245 52023FE3831 BXY/t TE M
BZEAFTAURBGANIEREERNCERZE
bk ims

As at 31 March 2024

VELEL) Significant

technique unobservable input

f&ES & EATAIMEENEE

F2024%3831H

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

L MEENEZ BURE

Unlisted equity Valuation EV/1-year Forward
investments multiples Sales multiple of peers
("Multiple”)
FEFRAERSA EN =R B A OE 1 E TR

HEE ("EZE)
EV/S multiple of
peers and P/B

multiple of peers
("Multiple”)
B N EEER R
mRZMEE (MBE)
EV/S multiple of
peers ("Multiple”)

NS AN I=X =
(&%)

Discount for lack of
marketability

RZHiREE it

Volatility

i

2.53x to
6.65x

253EFE

6.651Z

1.76x
1.03x

1.7613
1.0313
1.64x to
4.88x
(2023:
1.33x to
7.95x)
1.641EE
4 881%
(20234 :
1.3318%
7.951%)
11.40% to
33.0%
(2023:;
11.4% to
23.0%)

11.40%
£33.0%
(20234 :
1L%ZE

23.0%)

36.1% to
107.64%

36.1%%E
107.64%

When Multiple increases/decreases by
0.01, the fair value will be increased/
decreased by HK$6,000 and
HK$50,000

B A THROOTVES B AMNERE
h0./ Ei6,00078 75 %2 50,0007 7T

When Multiple increases/decreases by
0.01, the fair value will be increased/
decreased by HK$38,000 and
HK$38,000

EEEF TR0V BEER A ANER
./ 238,000 7T K2 38,0007 7T

When Multiple increases/decreases by
0.01 (2023: 0.01), the fair value will be
increased/decreased by HK$13,000
and HK$215,000 (2023: HK$Nil and
HK$213,000), respectively

¥ EFH / TFBE0.01 (20234 : 0.01)
DHNSBR RN ELIN, 13,0008
Tt 215,000/87T (20234 : EBTK
213,000 7T)

When discount increases/decreases by
0.01 (2023: 0.01), the fair value will
be increased/decreased by HK$1,000
and HK$26,000 (2023: HK$Nil and
HK$321,000), respectively

ik EF FB0.01 (20234 : 0.01) B9
BISEASNELI F1,0008 7T
26,0007 7t (20234 : F#IT 321,000
HBIT)

When volatility increases/decreases by
0.01, the fair value will be increased/
decreased by HK$6,000 and
HK$12,000

WEE EF S TE0.01 B S RA AN EE
M0/ B2 6,0007 5T K2 12,0007 7T
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31 March 2024 202443831 H

31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 31. £ TEHZAANMBERLIANMEZR

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

VELUENT]
technique

hES &

Significant
unobservable input

EATAMEHNELIE

Risk-free Rate

TR BEFZE
Unlisted equity Adjusted net N/A
investments asset value
EEHRAERR ZIRE™ &
B

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of premiums
and discounts determined by the Group that market participants would

take into account when pricing the investments.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 March 2024

Equity investments designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Investments in securities
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EEZRARMET NEM
SHWEZ RERA

() A

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

[SMENBANBIEZ HBRE

3.37% to  When risk-free rate increases/

3.63% decreases by 0.01, the fair value will
be increased/decreased by HK$Nil
and HK$6,000

33T%E  ENMRAIZEEFH TFEOOTESHARMN
3.63% B, BB TR 6,000 7T
N/A  When adjusted net asset value
increases/decreases by 0.01 (2023:
0.01), no
impact to the result (2023: no impact
to the result)

FEA KEREF2ELFATEO0.01 (2023
F:001) BA2SHEMZM (2023
F AREHEMTMm)

RZHIZREEZINEAEAEET TS 55
FERRBENHZE REVEN K Irit &5

[ANEFER
TRETAEATMTRAZ ARNETESFR :

BAAMETEZE™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SIRERMNE

31 March 2024 202443831 H

31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 31. £ THZAANMBRAIANEZE

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
As at 31 March 2023

()
RAAMEHEZE . (8)

F2023%38318 °

Fair value measurement using
RNANERBUTEIITE

Equity investments designated
at fair value through other

EEZAANETTAEM
SEWEZ RARR

F2024F3831H °

Fair value measurement using

LAMERBUTEmIITE

= 23,813,445 54,375,259 78,188,704

IEFR R 501,344,779 80,174,057 - 581,518,836

501,344,779 103,987,502 54,375,259 659,707,540

comprehensive income - 87,397,789 32,578,280 119,976,069

Debt investments at fair value BARMETT NS
through profit or loss REREA - - 5,876,221 5,876,221
Investments in securities IEHR AR 626,288,097 26,951,307 - 653,239,404
626,288,097 114,349,096 38,454,501 779,091,694

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 for financial assets (2023: Nil). The

N, MEMATMS, F—R5F_FzEH
FEEBAANEITE (2023F : K). F=RAZ

movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 are as follows: NANBEITEZAT :
2024
HK$
b

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income or profit or loss:

BAanpMEt NEtemims
Wik 7 SR

At 1 April F4A1H 38,454,501 45,998,791
Transfer from Level 2 during the year FRELEZR 48,876,823 135,144,726
Transfer to Level 2 during the year FERBENE R (2,516,254) -
Total losses recognised in the consolidated FoERERBINZ SRS

statement of profit or loss (2,683,632) (3,589,500)

Total losses recognised in other
comprehensive income

At 31 March

FHtt2EWERHIAZ SR

T3H31H

(27,756,179)

(139,099,516)

54,375,259

38,454,501
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31.

32.

172

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2024

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
at 31 March 2024.

As at 31 March 2023
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
at 31 March 2023.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
financial liabilities (2023: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(a) Financial risk factors
The Group's principal financial instruments comprise investments
in securities, equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, debt investments at fair value through profit
or loss and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to finance for the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
credit risk, equity price risk, liquidity risk and currency risk. The
Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

All the Group's cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions located in Hong Kong, which management believes are of
high credit quality. The Group has policies in place to evaluate credit
risk when accepting new business and to limit its credit exposure to
individual customers.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at
31 March. For listed debt investments, the Group also monitors them
by using external credit ratings. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.
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NEAF2024FE3831 BHEEABRAANET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SelISIRETMFE
31 March 2024 202453831 H

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 March 2024

12-month
ECLs
121°Bifs
ERSH

Stage 1
BrEg—

(a) MSRPEREE (£)
SRR (48)

32. SN ERBRRBEER (4

RENLREFDHESE (5R)

F202453H31H

Lifetime ECLs
SHFTMERTHR

Simplified
Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
ez = M= A

Trade receivables* Al /& - - - 52,710,948 52,710,948
Deferred rental receivables” BN WS 4,243,654 - - - 4,243,654
Financial assets included in WA, 2R

prepayments, deposits Hty i Wmm

and other receivables® SRR 20,990,425 - 14,660,785 - 35,651,210
Amounts due from fellow Il {EENL)EYNSIEN

subsidiaries

- Not yet past due — HARaH 991,869 - - - 991,869
Cash and cash equivalents NERNEEEME

- Not yet past due — B EHA 1,233,480,151 = - - 1,233,480,151

1,259,706,099 - 14,660,785 52,710,948 1,327,077,832
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A SIRERMNE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SZESIREME

31 March 2024 20245383180 31 March 2024 20245383180

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 32. MEXEEIRBAIFREE (4 32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 32. MEXEEEEAFEREE @)
(continued) (continued)

(a) MEREEE (L) (a) WSREEZE (&)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 March 2023

12-month
ECLs

1298
THERSHR

Stage 1

BMeg—

Stage 2

e

EE MBS (£2)

REMNERERDHESZE (BR)

F2023%F3831H

Lifetime ECLs

2HTHERSR

Simplified
Stage 3 approach

M= B

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the value of underlying individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (note
16) as at 31 March 2024.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% change
in the fair values of the equity investments to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax. For the purpose

of this analysis, the impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve.

R KL

RN RS HE R AIE SR M EFAE XD 5IE
FZMETMEERZ XK. F20245F38
318, AEFAEXNZRNNKLREDENE
ERAAMETANEMEER G 2 RAKRA
ZRIRAERE (MPE16)0

TRETTREPREEAFKIBEEANEZ
RERBRAANESZERD10% (FFEEME
ERFIZERTNEMRSTIE) 285
BE. BULDNMS, BREMBRANSA
AMEEEEX.

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B i B i

Carrying
amount of Change in
Trade receivables* 7 W - - - 31,321,571 31,321,571 investments equity*
Deferred rental receivables* b5 I VAL ik 6,525,764 - - - 6,525,764 BAWEE W5 T zh*
Financial assets included in ITARARIL. &ER 18,488,476 8,497,518 - - 26,985,994
prepayments, deposits HMF WSR2 AT AT
and other receivables* EREF

Amounts due from fellow IV EEN I =YNEIER

As at 31 March 2024 F20245F3831H

subsidiaries
H H H . JL R .
 Not yet past due _wxp 201,442 ) B ) 201,442 Unlisted equity investments: FELEPRAKE :
_ . . . . R =T—E I =AN (AN ) =
Cash and cash equivalents e RIS SR Equity investments designated at fair value ?E/E}ﬁ(%\ﬁ{)l@l‘l’)\,\ﬂtﬁﬁ
through other comprehensive income e 7 BRAS IR R 78,188,704 7,818,870
- Not yet past due — BRI 326,394,805 - - - 326,394,805
As at 31 March 2023 F2023F34831H
351,610,487 8497518 - 31,821,571 391,423,576 Unlisted equity investments: JELETRARKE
- Equity investments designated at fair value —EBERAANEITANEMEE
&3 For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for * MAEFAXBEWREEZNIKKZmS, BIE . . 3L U
impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 18 to the BREEMTEZEAE TS EIRERM 181 throth other comprehenswe income Llﬂzmzﬁﬁzts&m 119.976.069 11.997.607
consolidated financial statements. =,
o Excluding accumulated losses * TEERITSM
# The credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “normal” when they are # EMATEZERAEEE KRG, BEHLTERE

not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a REMAZ ZEERNKEBPL Fil AR AIZE N
R ER TNUERE~ZERRERD

of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”. HUATER"

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality

Details in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from BEAERANKKZZ EHZXNRZIFE, F

SaVSREME181KE,

trade receivables are disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZESIREME SESIREME
31 March 2024 2024438318 31 March 2024 2024438318
32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 32. MZRIEEEEHIRREE (&) 32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 32. MRS EIEEIRREE (&)

(continued) (continued)

176

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its current
obligations when they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding
through operating cash flows and advances from the immediate
holding company.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the

(a) MSREEE (40

MENE £ X

Mo AT XIS R EE R R E 22 BV EA
REZ X, HEZRNEEXGEEEE
BEECHERENEEITR AT 2 BRE
BrANE keI M BEE.

REHZ BERZREHEEB R MR Z R
REFTR, BREKEBINSMEE, LUHE
HIEHIR KRB A T T Ko

FERATHREFHRBRESHORTILOARZE

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Repayable on
demand/less
than 1 year

RERRE
—FLT
HK$

(a) MSRPEREE (£)
TENE £ ML (£2)

1 to 2 years Over 2 years
—ERE FE L
HK$ HK$

BT

BT BT

end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted RMARIEBEROT : Trade payables RS TR 72,459,276 - - 72,459,276
EEMITENS, 15 2 [ellons: PR — Financial liabilities included in ¥+ NEARI I 5T
other payables and accruals [T ER A2 Rk R 192,436,064 - - 192,436,064
Rental and other deposits HEhEMEE 57,925,054 26,211,606 19,836,811 103,973,471
Repayable on Amount due to the immediate  N{TEZFER AN
demand/less holding company 254,303,568 - - 254,303,568
than 1 year Lease liabilities B 1,279,666 - - 1,279,666
BEREE, 1to2years Over 2 years
—ElF —EM/E WEUE
578,403,628 26,211,606 19,836,811 624,452,045
Currency risk 1570 KU

The Group's functional currency is HK$. The Group is exposed to
currency risk primarily through investments in securities that are

REHZWEEM AN BT, FERAAEZ

Trade payables N AS TR 321,409,611 - - 321,409,611 EmMNEBERELEMETR (FBAET
d inated i th , bei i ily United Stat “EE) g >3 % HITS5ET
Financial liabilities included in 3T N EABRI 4 ERT R 286,015,237 102,640,377 9,031,857 397,687,471 del’:"m'?‘z:D"]'”Aa”E :;$C9rrencyd e'”hg Srs';‘a;' VG nite Z es (7 HEZIESRH, BFETERT
other payables and accruals R7 T8 A 2 &Rl fa i ° ars As the : IS [PELYEE! €0 o - (he Broup consicers £, REEANRTS R B ER
_ the risk of movements in exchange rates between the HK$ and the FHRE T Ao
Rental and other deposits HEMHEMZS 66,653,633 26,446,374 20,588,796 113,688,803 USD to be insignificant.
Amount due to the immediate R BT ABFTIN
holding company 254,303,568 - - 254,303,568 (b) Capital management (b) BAEE
Lease liabilities BES R 2,366,220 6,550,500 2,830,800 11,747,520 Thie geiimary cajechve off the Ereuge caplial menagerant 2 i FERARFERT TR AT HREAEDR
Interest-bearing borrowing Ry _ - 1,263,000,000 1,263,000,000 safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in FRE TR, MNTIRNBRERSREIR R NE
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other iy B RE, HAERRIEA Y B
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce 1, LUR/DBRAR A, FH, AAEEZE
930,748,269 135,637,251 1,295,451,453 2,361,836,973 the cost of capital. No changes were made in the objectives, policies . BUESIZRE H TR 5,

Cyberport 2023/24 Annual Report

or processes for managing capital during the year.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholder’s
equity. Management reviews the capital structure periodically and
manages its overall capital structure if necessary. As at 31 March
2024 and 2023, the Group was in a net cash position.

33. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 18 April 2024, 1,621,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$1
each were issued and allotted to the immediate holding company of
the Company in consideration of the injection of an aggregate sum of
HK$1,621,000,000 into the Company.

RERAZARBIERANGDZFEID. B
EREHITEAREN, FELENBAER
BIRE AL, REFTF2024F K&20234F3
A31 B FIE AR,

33. IREHIREM

F2024 548188, ZAAAREERERATER
FTHBER1,621,000,000 RS REE 1 ETHE B

ﬁﬁ’

ERBARBENEE,621,000,000% 758

Ko
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SelSIRETMFE SelISIRETMFE
31 March 2024 202443831 H 31 March 2024 202443831 H
34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 34. ZRFMSKRRE 34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 34, Z2FMSBRAR (0

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at RABMSHRRFIREPRZAZLIOT ¢ (continued)

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2024
2024 HK$
HK$ T
BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS E 35787 - TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES AP BB 5,864,669,775 3,753,667,403
i N4 Sl
Property, plant and equipment k. W KIRE 5,250,272,836  3,225,323,252 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES Rl
Right-of-use assets RN St 1.190.514 Interest-bearing borrowings ITEMER 1,263,000,000 -
i BIEN + .
Deferred rental receivables TEAERY Wi S 4,243,654 6.525.764 Development maintenance fund EREERES 370,232,570 371,802,919
i i B ATES N
Investment in a subsidiary L) =FNCIE 1 1 Other payables AR 2T 9,031,857 B
i STnEel , , N
Prepayments and deposits S TR ¥ & 758,292 432,671 Lease liabilities ER 5,958,950 B
- MENERF RS ,263,971, 233,472, N o
Total non-current assets AP ARRIA B 5,263,971,736  3,233.472.202 Total non-current liabilities SRR RS 1,648,223,377  371,802919
.
CURRENT ASSETS A Net assets B eE 4,216,646,398  3,381,864,484
Inventories =I5 466,319 376,004
Trade receivables N7 LT TR 44,636,496 27,999,345
, , . ) EQUITY 64
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FUSTRIN $2 K ELh A7 WER I 29,957,635 25,029,441
o Share capital A 1,998,000,002 984,000,002
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries IME EX N VA ERY 991,869 201,442
S . Reserves (Note) fEE (MiE) 2,218,446,396  2,397,864,482
Amounts due from subsidiaries vt g o =PI B8l 180,658,403 171,844,623
Investments in securities IEHER R 581,518,836 653,239,404
Cash and cash equivalents NeRNeEERnE 1,233,395,367 326,309,761 Total equity e S AN 4,216,446,398 3,381,864,484
Total current assets RO = B ER 2,071,624,925 1,205,000,020
CURRENT LIABILITIES ek
CHAN Sai-ming CHEUNG Wing-han
Trade payables IVERELEN 321,409,611 72,459,276
R P4 40 BR BRER R
Other payables and accruals EL R (S FRIAS N 11 2% A 778,562,627 252,788,838
Director Director
Rental and other deposits e RE %S 113,688,803 103,973,471 o o
Amount due to the immediate holding company IVERI=EE2A) s FN=TE O] 254,303,568 254,303,568
Lease liabilities HEMR 2,962,277 1,279,666
Total current liabilities SREN TR BET 1,470,926,886 684,804,819
NET CURRENT ASSETS MmENAEF=RE 600,698,039 520,195,201
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SelSIRETMFE
31 March 2024 202443831 H

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 34. ZRQTMESHRAR (»©0)
(continued)
Note: B -

Movements of the Company's reserves are as follows: AABEEZERMT :

Capital reserve Accumulated losses

AAfikE 2it 5

HK$ HK$

BT AT
At 1 April 2022 F202254818 5,386,040,004 (2,753,483,983) 2,632,556,021
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FEATHRELESIRE2E - (242,095,027) (242,095,027)

Transfer from development maintenance

fund to capital reserve HERECESHRILKERAEE 7,403,488 - 7,403,488
At 31 March 2023 and at 1 April 2023 F202353831H K F2023F481H 5,393,443,492 (2,995,579,010) 2,397,864,482
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FEATHRKEESIREE - (180,988,435) (180,988,435)
Transfer from development maintenance HAREECESRRERLMEE

fund to capital reserve 1,670,349 - 1,570,349
At 31 March 2024 F20243831H 5,395,013,841 (3,176,567,445) 2,218,446,396

35. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 35. #Z /HEaI1ZIRE

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for SEVSIRET 2024 F9 825 AFEE R EH
issue by the Board of Directors on 25 September 2024. el A .
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